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	Inspiring Change Manchester – Expression of Interest Clarification Questions
Tuesday 26th January 2016 

	

	1. It is unclear whether or not TUPE is involved. Can you advise? And forward any relevant TUPE documents please. 

We believe that TUPE may apply but organisations are strongly advised to take their own legal advice on this. As stated in the ITT information, Shelter will assist consideration of TUPE by requesting workforce information from current providers of services. As soon as this information is available it will be forwarded to organisations who have registered interest in this opportunity. 

2. Is this service currently being delivered by another provider and if so is there any TUPE data available.

The current service has been subject to extensive re-design as part of a business plan review. We believe that TUPE may apply but organisations are strongly advised to take their own legal advice on this. As stated in the ITT information, Shelter will assist consideration of TUPE by requesting workforce information from current providers of services. As soon as this information is available it will be forwarded to organisations who have registered interest in this opportunity. 


3. We are concerned about the timescales to provide this information so that we can carry out full due diligence on the opportunity and submit a tender which has a suitable and appropriate costing. 

A comprehensive TUPE questionnaire has been sent to existing providers with a request for return by Close of Business on Tuesday 19th January. This will be forwarded to all interested parties as soon it has been received. 

4. Can you please confirm whether diagrams are permitted as part of the bidder’s response to the method statements?

If yes, can you please confirm whether the words within these diagrams will be included or excluded from the total word count? 

Can you please confirm whether or not bidders are permitted to attach appendices to support the word limited method statement responses?

If yes, can you please confirm whether appendices will be included or excluded from the total word limit for that question?

Method Statement 1.1 asks bidders to provide an implementation. Can you please clarify whether you are looking for a full plan, or a Gantt chart

We can confirm that diagrams are  permitted as  part of the  response  to the method statement and words will be included  in the  overall work count.

We would prefer not to see Appendices; however, if they are included the words used must be part of the overall word count.       

There is no prescribed format for the implementation plan; this is up to bidders to decide. 

5. On page 4 of the spec it states…”The appointed provider will head the operational part of the programme, coordinating and supporting agencies delivering the following functions:

· Mental Health – delivered by Self Help Services, addresses low-level mental health need and opens up pathways to high need support, alongside enhancing psychologically informed practice across the programme. Delivers CBT, counselling and reflective practice.

· Accommodation – delivered by Shelter, supporting service users to access suitable housing and leading a Housing First pilot

· GROW campus, delivered by Back on Track and providing bespoke education, training and pre-employment support

· Peer Mentoring, provider yet to be appointed, a volunteer led service, engaging lived experience volunteers to inspire, motivate, support and encourage service users.”

Is the expectation that the successful bidder will manage the above services?

The successful bidder will be expected to lead the Engagement team ensuring that co-ordinated support is  provided for clients  from programme partners which include Shelter (Accommodation), Back on Track (ETE), Self Help Services (Mental Health) and Peer Mentoring from a provider yet to be selected. These partners have their own contracting arrangements with  the  Programme Team and would not be directly managed by the  bidder. It would be the responsibility of the  successful bidder for the Engagement Team to ensure that an integrated model operates and that resources are managed effectively and in the interest of achieving programme outcomes. 
6. On Page 4 of the spec it says…”The appointed provider will provide day-to-day management of the ICM community HUB, operating it as a psychological informed environment and a new form of ‘community space’.” 
Do you have identified space already in mind for the delivery of this service?
7. We note the requirement  to provide day to day management of the ICM community HUB for lot 1.

Could you please advise if the appointed provider will be required to rent the premises, and if so, advise the landlord details so that negotiations can be made.
The ICM Hub at Cable street in Manchester was officially opened on 1st June  2015 and runs as a community  space  and a Psychologically Informed Environment. It was designed by people with lived experience of multiple needs and of receiving services. It needs to operate as innovative new space, bringing something different to Manchester that we can learn from. It was not intended to be the main delivery site with regard to service user work although it can provide useful space to see clients, e.g. it has two counselling rooms and open plan group space. Programme delivery should be taking place in the community, taking an innovative and person centred approach. This will involve integration with other services, working in client’s homes and working in social spaces in the community. 

The Hub space is rented to Shelter from the landlord, the successful bidder won’t be responsible for rent, service charges or utility bills. The successful bidder would be expected to run the  Hub on a day to day basis on behalf of the programme using the principles  outlined above and in the  outline    service specification. Flexible operating hours will be required, as will opening the Hub up for use by partners, volunteers, stakeholders and community groups.   

 

8. Page 7 of the PQQ entitled 'Professional and Business Standing' is overwritten. Would you mind confirming what the question is? Does  'partner' in the text [apply]  in the context of lead applicant only, or means 'partner' in the broader sense.   
Section 2 of the  PQQ (p7) looks at  Professional and  business standing . The question is:

Do any of the following apply to your organisation , or to (any of) the  director(s)/partners / proprietor(s)?  

‘Partners’ in this context would include   both partners from within an organisation and those with whom a lead provider  is working in consortium.  
9. The contract terms and Conditions are  not included in the documents. The ITT states they should be included in section 8 as appendix 4, but appendix 4 is not included, the document ends with Appendix 3. 

Can you clarify please 
Apologies for this omission. Appendix 4 is logged on  the MACC Community Central website along with other appendices and  documents. Please note that the contract terms and conditions are draft and  therefore may  be subject to change.  
10. Could you confirm that this opportunity should be treated as a grant for VAT purposes?
Yes, this  opportunity is to be treated as a grant for VAT purposes.


  11. Would it be possible for Section 7 of the ITT to be drafted as a standalone and editable document to complete and   submit?  This will allow us to easier navigate the 80 page ITT?
Yes, this would be acceptable. Please note the word count restriction would still apply.   
12. Is there space in the Hub for the successful bidder’s team to operate from, or are we required to rent office space elsewhere in the city? If so, how many staff could the Hub accommodate? 

13. The Lot 1 specification states that the provider will be managing the ICM Community Hub. Are these premises that currently fall under the contract? If so, please could you provide the costs for rent/running of these premises to include in the budget?

Please see the answer to questions 6 and 7.

A number of Engagement team staff currently work from the Hub on a rota basis and the Hub is the venue from where engagement to clients    can be   coordinated. The Hub also hosts Accommodation Workers from Shelter and mental health practitioners from Self Help Services for some time each week, facilitating good communication and joint working. There are 8 desk spaces in total and some bench workspace with PCs. The Hub is not to be viewed as permanent back office provision for the engagement team; space and the delivery model do not permit this.  The engagement team would be required to be creative in term of where and when the support to clients would be delivered, delivering from a number of access points across the city and co-location with other agencies may need to be arranged by the successful bidder. 
14. Would you please be able to let us know the name of management information system that is currently being used and also whether the successful provider will need to use it? 

ICM has developed M-Think - our own cloud based case management system - which operates across the delivery partnership (and is being rolled out wider across services in Manchester). The successful provider would be required to use it as the sole system for ICM cases. It facilitates integrated working and an asset based approach, both key factors in relation to programme ethos.    

15. Are the Grow Trainee placements to be in addition to the apprenticeship required? If so, could the commissioners please clarify how many GROW placements they would want the provider to offer, and whether the supervision responsibilities will sit with the GROW Campus providers, or the provider of this service?

GROW traineeships within ICM are an established part of workforce design. Whilst not prescribing a particular model at this stage we’ve come to expect a minimum of three 12 month GROW trainees each year. GROW trainees will be practitioner level posts, in addition to a team leader apprenticeship or traineeship. Line management supervision would come from the appointed provider but additional resource with induction, training and support will come from or be arranged by the Programme Team. This will be to help bring about a degree of standardisation with GROW traineeship experience across the programme.  
16. Please could you provide the running costs of the MTHINK system to include in our budget
There are no running costs to the successful bidders for M-Think; licences are held by the Programme and distributed throughout the Engagement team.    Monitoring and performance management functions involving M-Think will be led by a  Project Support Officer   and  Research and  Evaluation  Officer based in the  programme team. 
17. Can the commissioners please clarify whether the probation staff are substantive roles, and whether they will be eligible for TUPE?

Please see the TUPE information provided by Probation. “The end date of fixed term contract, temporary deployment or attachment in relation to Inspiring Change Manchester” for all Probation posts is 31/3/16. Further information about the nature and detail of the posts is provided on their TUPE questionnaire.  
18.  As part of the tender bid – I understand the ICM will work with the programme team whom provides performance and business support.   
I would appreciate if you can give me a brief understanding of M-Think and its workings,.

Do partner agencies work closely with you in regards to the evaluation of the system? how often is the system used? and how are reports pulled from the system?

A pdf. ‘Introducing M-Think’  is now attached to the documents already posted.  Further training will be provided for the  staff of the  successful bidder by staff from the Programme Team. 
M-Think is used by the Engagement Team continually to record client profile information, casework and assessments. The programme team work with the M-Think provider Real Systems and all ICM delivery partners to bring about continual improvements. 

There are standard reports which can be  run by the Project Support officer or by nominated staff from the Engagement team and  bespoke reports can also be  created to allow further  data analysis. The reports are  straightforward to create, run  and  export  to  other media  if needed. 
19. When can we expect to see TUPE information for the Peer Mentoring Lot?
This is a new service.   

20. Please could you confirm if we need to include salary costs for the GROW Traineeships within our models or is this an additional resource?
The salary costs will need to be included from with the model. These are 12 month fixed term entry level posts.  
21. Please can you confirm if the provider will be responsible for installation and running costs of IT and telephony equipment in the hub?
Yes – the provider will be responsible for  these costs
22. Please can you confirm if there are any costs to the provider for the use and technical support of M-think?
No -  the provider will not  be responsible for these 
23. What is the current open caseload?
There are currently 112  live cases on  M-Think 

24. Can you confirm which of these [current providers]  currently deliver the Engagement team and which of the staff identified would TUPE across as part of this team.  
The engagement team operates as a partnership of three organisations, led by Riverside.  We strongly advise the successful bidder to seek their own legal advice around TUPE responsibilities. A number of posts across this partnership are fixed term and we understand there will not be rights of transfer. We are currently seeking further information on this matter and will contact interested parties as soon as possible.  

25. Can you also specify who delivers the other elements of the Inspiring Change Manchester Programme, so that we can be more specific in our response around how we will work in partnership.
As stated in the Outline Service Specification, the  Accommodation pathway is led by Shelter, Mental Health  pathway by Self Help Services and  the  GROW campus by Back on Track (see p2 of the  Outline Service  Specification) . 

26. We would be grateful if you can you provide further details on the nature of “the programme’s Flexible Fund”, which is mentioned several times in the Service Specification.  Is this the local element of the national fund associated with Universal Credit?

The Flexible Fund is specific to ICM and sits   outside the national fund associated with Universal Credit or any local Welfare Assistance Scheme. It is underpinned by the programme’s emphasis on person centred working and is designed to enable individuals to overcome barriers to engaging with services and move towards sustainable personal outcomes. It allows individuals to access a service they may otherwise not be offered or find affordable in mainstream services. It forms a fundamental part of offering person-centred approaches. Key elements include:

(Empowering individuals to define what they need rather than offering a fixed range of services

(Gives options to staff to bring in services that may not be on offer in existing accessible services

(Allows for innovative solutions and new ways of working with clients leading to better outcomes

The amount for the flexible fund comes from the programme and  the successful bidder  would not be expected to find this cost from their budget. 
27. Please can you supply more detailed information on the No Wrong Door Compact?
Please see  appendix C
28. With reference to the Grow Trainee placements – can the commissioners please clarify what, if any, associated costs from their roles will be within this contractual envelope? And, is the Grow Trainee placement, the same as the apprenticeship? 

All costs associated  with the GROW trainees would be  expected to come from  the  budget of the successful bidder . Additional support with induction and training will be provided by the Programme Team. 

The GROW trainees have been practitioner or  administration roles. The  Team Leader apprenticeship post for those with  lived  experience of multiple needs  is a change to the  existing programme and we would  welcome ideas from organisations bidding  for this lot for the  model and implementation.   

29. With regards to employees numbered one and two from CGM, CRC it states the following;

Contractual status on transferring work eg permanent, fixed term contract, temporary deployment, attachment. Internal assignment (temp deployment) from 1 Jan 2015.
Could you please confirm that this is a temp deployment into the transferring entity and that at the end of this period they will be returning to their substantive posts on 31st March 2016?

We have  received written  confirmation from  CGM CRC  that  should they  not  be involved as a delivery partner following the  current  tendering of lot 1 the staff in  question will be returning  to posts within  the organisation, ending their  deployment to Inspiring Change on 31st March 2016.        
30. With regards to employee 3 from CGM CRC, could you please provide further information around the defined contribution pension scheme.  Is this a stakeholder pension?  Is this employee contractually eligible to join the LGPS?  Would they be if their contract was extended?
We are unable to comment on this and the issue would be one we would expect to be dealt with  via  direct  contact between any successful bidder and the  organisation in question if necessary. 

31. Could you please confirm the reason for employee 3 from CGM CRC’s fixed term contract and why this is ceasing?
We are unable to comment on this and the issue would be one we would expect to be dealt with  via  direct  contact between any successful bidder and the  organisation in question if necessary. 

32. On page 20, it says staff will work in locations across city.  What are these please
ICM works with partners across the city and also seeks to see clients in  a variety of locations including drop in day centres, GP practices,  community  settings and  their own home.   

33. Clarification Question for all Providers:  Is Redundancy Pay calculated as per Statutory Redundancy pay or are there any enhancements?  Is redundancy pay calculated on actual weeks pay or on the capped rate of £475.00 for Statutory Redundancy Pay? If redundancy pay is not capped please provide details of how it is calculated? Any enhancements on pension for those made redundant at age 55?
To assist with consideration of TUPE we have decided to gather and convey information via the questionnaire that has already been sent to interested  parties. We are questioning some of the information provided by Riverside and will update  as soon as we are able to. It is not our intention to gather and distribute job descriptions from current  providers


34. Clarification Question for Riverside: Please confirm what percentage the employees listed are assigned to this contract?
We have requested this  information and will be  posting an  updated questionnaire as soon as it has been  provided by Riverside. 

